
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE 
 
DATE: WEDNESDAY, 25 JANUARY 2023  
TIME: 5:30 pm 
PLACE: Meeting Rooms G.01 and G.02, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 

Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 
 
 
 
Members of the Committee 
 
Councillor Riyait (Chair) 
Councillor Aldred (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors Chamund, Joshi, Modhwadia, Dr Moore, Thalukdar, Valand and 
Westley 
 
One unallocated Labour group place 
 
Members of the Committee are summoned to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed overleaf. 
 
 

 
 
For Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 
 

Officer contact:  
Aqil Sarang, tel: 0116 454 5591 / Jacob Mann, tel: 0116 454 5843 /  
e-mail: aqil.sarang@leicester.gov.uk / jacob.mann@leicester.gov.uk 

Democratic Support, Leicester City Council, City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 

 



 

Information for members of the public 
 
Attending meetings and access to information 
 
You have the right to attend formal meetings such as Full Council, committee meetings, and Scrutiny 
Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes.   
 
However, on occasion, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private.  
 
Members of the public can follow a live stream of the meeting on the Council’s website at this link: 
http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts  
 
Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s website at 
www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by contacting us using the details below. 
 
Making meetings accessible to all 
 
Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair 
users.  Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the 
plate on the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically. 
 
Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer 
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms.  Please speak to the 
Democratic Support Officer using the details below. 
 
Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to 
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including social 
media.  In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s policy, persons and press 
attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where 
the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting.  
Details of the Council’s policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support. 
 
If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant 
Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in 
advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public 
gallery etc.. 
 
The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and engagement 
so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked: 
 to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
 to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided; 
 where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting; 
 where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they 

may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 
 
Further information  
 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact: 
Aqil Sarang, tel: 0116 454 5591 / Jacob Mann, tel: 0116 454 5843 or , Democratic Support Officers.   
Alternatively, email aqil.sarang@leicester.gov.uk / jacob.mann@leicester.gov.uk, or call in at City Hall. 
 
For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151. 
 
 

http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts
http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/


 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION 
 
If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the 
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the are outside the Ramada Encore Hotel on 
Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will then 
be given. 
 
 
NOTE: 
 
This meeting will be webcast live at the following link:- 

 
http://www.leicester.public-i.tv 

 
An archive copy of the webcast will normally be available on the Council’s 
website within 48 hours of the meeting taking place at the following link:-  
 

http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

 

 Members are asked to confirm that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning 
and Development Control Committee held on 23 November 2022 are a correct 
record.  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to 
be discussed on the Agenda. 
 
Members will be aware of the Code of Practice for Member involvement in 
Development Control decisions. They are also asked to declare any interest 
they might have in any matter on the committee agenda and/or contact with 
applicants, agents or third parties. The Chair, acting on advice from the 
Monitoring Officer, will then determine whether the interest disclosed is such to 
require the Member to withdraw from the committee during consideration of the 
relevant officer report. 
 
Members who are not on the committee but who are attending to make 
representations in accordance with the Code of Practice are also required to 
declare any interest.  The Chair, acting on advice from the Monitoring Officer, 

http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/
http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts


 

will determine whether the interest disclosed is such that the Member is not 
able to make representations.  Members requiring guidance should contact the 
Monitoring Officer or the Committee's legal adviser prior to the committee 
meeting.  
 

4. PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND CONTRAVENTIONS  
 

Appendix A 

 The Committee is asked to consider the recommendations of the Director, 
Planning, Development and Transportation contained in the attached reports, 
within the categories identified in the index appended with the reports.  
 

 (i) 20220966 3 SCRAPTOFT LANE  
 

Appendix A1 

 (ii) 20220977 8 THORESPBY STREET  
 

Appendix A2 

5. ANY URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 

6. CLOSE OF MEETING  
 

 

 



Planning & Development Control Committee  Date: 25 January 2023  
 

 

K:$x50jpqjv.docx 

 

 
 

Wards: 
See individual reports. 

 
 

 

Planning & Development Control Committee Date: 25 January 2023  

REPORTS ON APPLICATIONS, CONTRAVENTIONS AND APPEALS 

 

Report of the Director, Planning and Transportation  

1 Introduction 

1.1 This is a regulatory committee with a specific responsibility to make decisions 
on planning applications that have not been delegated to officers and decide 
whether enforcement action should be taken against breaches of planning 
control. The reports include the relevant information needed for committee 
members to reach a decision. 

1.2 There are a number of standard considerations that must be covered in 
reports requiring a decision. To assist committee members and to avoid 
duplication these are listed below, together with some general advice on 
planning considerations that can relate to recommendations in this report. 
Where specific considerations are material planning considerations they are 
included in the individual agenda items. 

2 Planning policy and guidance 

2.1 Planning applications must be decided in accordance with National Planning 
Policy, the Development Plan, principally the Core Strategy, saved policies of 
the City of Leicester Local Plan and any future Development Plan Documents, 
unless these are outweighed by other material considerations. Individual 
reports refer to the policies relevant to that application. 

3 Sustainability and environmental impact 

3.1 The policies of the Local Plan and the LDF Core Strategy were the subject of 
a Sustainability Appraisal that contained the requirements of the Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA) Directive 2001. Other Local Development 
Documents will be screened for their environmental impact at the start of 
preparation to determine whether an SEA is required. The sustainability 
implications material to each recommendation, including any Environmental 
Statement submitted with a planning application are examined in each report. 

3.2 All applications for development falling within the remit of the Town and 
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 are 
screened to determine whether an environmental impact assessment is 
required. 

1

Appendix A



Planning & Development Control Committee  Date: 25 January 2023  
 

 

K:$x50jpqjv.docx 

3.3 The sustainability and environmental implications material to each 
recommendation, including any Environmental Statement submitted with a 
planning application are examined and detailed within each report. 

3.4 Core Strategy Policy 2, addressing climate change and flood risk, sets out the 
planning approach to dealing with climate change. Saved Local Plan policies 
and adopted supplementary planning documents address specific aspects of 
climate change. These are included in individual reports where relevant. 

3.5 Chapter 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework – Meeting the 
challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change – sets out how the 
planning system should support the transition to a low carbon future, taking full 
account of flood risk and coastal change. Paragraph 149 states “Policies 
should support appropriate measures to ensure the future resilience of 
communities and infrastructure to climate change impacts, such as providing 
space for physical protection measures, or making provision for the possible 
future relocation of vulnerable development and infrastructure.” 

3.6 Paragraphs 155 - 165 of the National Planning Policy sets out the national 
policy approach to planning and flood risk.   

4 Equalities and personal circumstances  

4.1 Whilst there is a degree of information gathered and monitored regarding the 
ethnicity of applicants it is established policy not to identify individual 
applicants by ethnic origin, as this would be a breach of data protection and 
also it is not a planning consideration.  Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
provides that local authorities must, in exercising their functions, have regard 
to the need to: 

a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 

b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

4.2 The identity or characteristics, or economic circumstances of an applicant or 
intended users of a development are not normally material considerations. 
Where there are relevant issues, such as the provision of specialist 
accommodation or employment opportunities these are addressed in the 
individual report. 

5 Crime and disorder 

5.1 Issues of crime prevention and personal safety are material considerations in 
determining planning applications. Where relevant these are dealt with in 
individual reports. 

6 Finance 

6.1 The cost of operating the development management service, including 
processing applications and pursuing enforcement action, is met from the 
Planning service budget which includes the income expected to be generated 
by planning application fees. 

2



Planning & Development Control Committee  Date: 25 January 2023  
 

 

K:$x50jpqjv.docx 

6.2 Development management decisions can result in appeals to the Secretary of 
State or in some circumstances legal challenges that can have cost 
implications for the City Council. These implications can be minimised by 
ensuring decisions taken are always based on material and supportable 
planning considerations. Where there are special costs directly relevant to a 
recommendation these are discussed in the individual reports. 

6.3 Under the Localism Act 2011 local finance considerations may be a material 
planning consideration. When this is relevant it will be discussed in the 
individual report.  

7 Planning Obligations 

7.1 Where impacts arise from proposed development the City Council can require 
developers to meet the cost of mitigating those impacts, such as increased 
demand for school places and demands on public open space, through 
planning obligations. These must arise from the council’s adopted planning 
policies, fairly and reasonably relate to the development and its impact and 
cannot be used to remedy existing inadequacies in services or facilities. The 
council must be able to produce evidence to justify the need for the 
contribution and its plans to invest them in the relevant infrastructure or 
service, and must have regard to the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment)(England) Regulations 2019.  

7.2 Planning obligations cannot make an otherwise unacceptable planning 
application acceptable.  

7.3 Recommendations to secure planning obligations are included in relevant 
individual reports, however it should be noted however that the viability of a 
development can lead to obligations being waived. This will be reported upon 
within the report where relevant. 

8 Legal 

8.1 The recommendations in this report are made under powers contained in the 
Planning Acts. Specific legal implications, including the service of statutory 
notices, initiating prosecution proceedings and preparation of legal 
agreements are identified in individual reports. As appropriate, the City 
Barrister and Head of Standards has been consulted and his comments are 
incorporated in individual reports. 

8.2 Provisions in the Human Rights Act 1998 relevant to considering planning 
applications are Article 8 (the right to respect for private and family life), Article 
1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and, where relevant, Article 14 
(prohibition of discrimination). 

8.3 The issue of Human Rights is a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications and enforcement issues. Article 8 requires respect for 
private and family life and the home. Article 1 of the first protocol provides an 
entitlement to peaceful enjoyment of possessions. Article 14 deals with the 
prohibition of discrimination. It is necessary to consider whether refusing 
planning permission and/or taking enforcement action would interfere with the 
human rights of the applicant/developer/recipient. These rights are ‘qualified’, 
so committee must decide whether any interference is in accordance with 
planning law, has a legitimate aim and is proportionate. 

3



Planning & Development Control Committee  Date: 25 January 2023  
 

 

K:$x50jpqjv.docx 

8.4 The impact on the human rights of an applicant or other interested person 
must be balanced against the public interest in terms of protecting the 
environment and the rights of other people living in the area. 

8.5 Case law has confirmed that the processes for determination of planning 
appeals by the Secretary of State are lawful and do not breach Article 6 (right 
to a fair trial). 

9 Background Papers 

 Individual planning applications are available for inspection on line at 
www.leicester.gov.uk/planning. Other reasonable arrangements for inspecting 
application documents can be made on request by e-mailing 
planning@leicester.gov.uk . Comments and representations on individual 
applications are kept on application files, which can be inspected on line in the 
relevant application record. 

10 Consultations 

 Consultations with other services and external organisations are referred to in 
individual reports. 

11 Report Author 

Grant Butterworth grant.butterworth@leicester.gov.uk (0116) 454 5044 
(internal 37 5044). 

 

 
 
 
 
 

INDEX 

APPLICATION ORDER 
 

Page 
Main 

Page 
Supp 

Application 
Number 

Address Ward 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 

4

mailto:planning@leicester.gov.uk


\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 1 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 

 

20220966 3 Scraptoft Lane 

Proposal: 

Construction of single storey extension at side and rear of house 
(Class C3); alterations (AMENDED PLANS RECEIVED 
28/12/2022) 

Applicant: Mr Siraj Patel 

App type: Operational development - full application 

Status: Householder development 

Expiry Date: 27 July 2022 

PB TEAM:  PD WARD:  Thurncourt 

 

 

 ©Crown Copyright Reserved. Leicester City Council Licence 100019264(2023). Ordnance Survey 
mapping does not imply any ownership boundaries and does not always denote the exact ground 
features 

Summary 
 Brought to committee as 6 objections and a petition containing 10 

signatures received.  

 Objectors raise issues relating to the status of Scraptoft Mews as private 
land (and implications for the construction/maintenance of the proposed 
development), impacts during construction, privacy and amenity, flooding 
and wildlife. 

5

Appendix A1



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 2 

 The main issues in this case are: principle of development; character and 
appearance of the area; amenity of neighbouring occupiers; living 
conditions of future occupiers; parking and access; and flooding. 

 Recommendation is for approval.  

The Site 
This application relates to a 1930s two storey semi-detached house situated on the 
south side of Scraptoft Lane. The house has a lean-to car port at the side and what 
appears to be an original single storey outrigger at the rear. 
 
The adjoining semi-detached dwelling to the east, 5 Scraptoft Lane, has been 
enlarged by a single storey extension and a dormer roof extension at the rear.  
 
Adjoining the site to the west is Scraptoft Mews. This is a development of three 
storey houses which are turned to face the application site and served by a private 
road that runs alongside the side boundary of the application site. 
 
The application site benefits from a rear garden of approx. 49 metres’ length which 
adjoins the Bushby Brook (classified as an Environment Agency main river) at the 
rear. The application site (including the house) falls within fluvial Flood Zone 3a as 
well as an area of mapped surface water flood risk and a Critical Drainage Area. 
Part of the rear garden is within 20 metres of the riverbank top of the Bushby Brook 
and is within a Biodiversity Enhancement Site associated with that watercourse.  
 
The site is also within a 250 metres Local Authority Air Pollution Control buffer of 
the Shell Trocadero petrol station. 

Background 
Planning permission was granted in 2009 for the construction of a two storey 
extension at the side of the application dwellinghouse (20091149) and an extension 
of time for the implementation of the permission was approved in 2012 (20120890). 
The two storey side extension was not constructed and the approval expired in 
2015. 
 
Planning permission was sought in 2021 for the construction of a single storey 
extension at the side and rear of the application house, and for an access ramp at 
the front and alterations (20212776). However, planning permission was refused 
for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed development by reason of its excessive depth, poor design, 
height and siting, would fail to appear as subservient to the host property. 
The proposal would visually dominate the property when viewed from the 
neighbouring properties on Scraptoft Mews and would not contribute 
positively to the local character of the area, contrary to paragraphs 130 
and 134 of the NPPF 2021, Policy PS10 of the Local Plan, Core Strategy 
policy CS03 and the Residential Amenity SPD. 

6



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 3 

The Proposal  
Planning permission is now sought for the following development: 
 

 The construction of a single storey side extension, following the 
dismantling of the existing car port. The extension would line-up with the 
front of the original house and would span the full depth of the original 
house at ground floor level to line-up with the rear wall of the single storey 
outrigger. The extension would have a width of 2.5 metres bringing its flank 
wall adjacent to the side boundary. It would have a pitched roof over, 
giving a maximum height of 3.9 metres and an eaves height 2.5 metres. 

 The construction of a single storey rear extension. The extension would 
occupy the space between the flank wall of the single storey outrigger and 
the boundary with 5 Scraptoft Lane. It would have a rearward projection of 
3.3 metres and would have a monopitch roof over giving a maximum 
height of 3.9 metres and an eaves height 2.5 metres. 

 
In conjunction with internal alterations (that do not need planning permission) the 
proposal would facilitate the provision of a ground floor bedroom with shower room, 
a new open-plan kitchen and dining area, a storage room and a ground floor w.c. 
 
The proposal, which has been amended during the course of this application to 
address outstanding officer concerns, differs from that of the previously refused 
application (20212776) in the following material respects: 
 

 it does not project beyond the existing single storey outrigger (the refused 
proposal would have projected 8 metres beyond it, giving a total span of 
development adjacent to the boundary with Scraptoft Mews of over 21 
metres); 

 its maximum and eaves heights have been reduced (from 4.4 metres and 
3.5 metres respectively); 

 a level access ramp that had been proposed at the front is now omitted; 
and 

 it introduces single storey development adjacent to the boundary with 5 
Scraptoft Lane. 

Policy Considerations 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) 
 
The presumption in favour of sustainable development 
 
Paragraph 11 states that decisions should apply a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development which means: (c) approving development proposals that 
accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay; or where there are no 
relevant development plan policies (or the most important policies are out of date) 
granting permission unless NPPF policies that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provide a clear reason for refusal, or any adverse impacts of granting 
permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against NPPF policies as a whole. 

7



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 4 

 
Decision taking 
 
Paragraph 38 encourages local planning authorities to approach decisions in a 
positive and creative way and states that they should work proactively with 
applicants. It goes on to state that decision makers should seek to approve 
applications for sustainable development where possible. 
 
Paragraph 56 lays down the tests for planning conditions. They are that planning 
conditions must be: necessary; relevant to planning; relevant to the development; 
enforceable; precise; and reasonable. 
 
Achieving well-designed places 
 
Paragraph 126 states that the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process 
should achieve. 
 
Paragraph 130 states that planning decisions should ensure developments: (a) will 
function well; (b) are visually attractive; (c) are sympathetic to local character and 
history; (d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place; (e) optimise the potential 
of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of 
development; and (f) create places with a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users. 
 
Paragraph 131 notes that trees make an important contribution to the character 
and quality of urban environments and can also help mitigate climate change. It 
states that planning decisions should ensure that existing trees are retained 
wherever possible. 
 
Paragraph 134 states that development that is not well designed should be refused, 
especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and government guidance 
on design. 
 
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
 
Paragraph 167 states that local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk 
is not increased elsewhere and that, where appropriate, applications should be 
supported by a site-specific flood risk assessment. It goes on to state that 
development should only be allowed in areas at risk of flooding where, in the light 
of this assessment, it can be demonstrated that: (b) the development is 
appropriately flood resistant and resilient; (c) it incorporates sustainable drainage 
systems; (d) any residual risk can be safely managed; and (e) safe access and 
escape routes are included, where appropriate. 
 
Paragraph 168 states that applications for some minor developments should not 
be subject to the sequential or exception tests but should still meet the 
requirements for site-specific flood risk assessments. Footnote 55 confirms that 
this includes householder development. 
 

8



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 5 

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
 
Paragraph 174 states that planning decision should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment by (d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains 
for biodiversity. 
 
Paragraph 180 states that (a) if significant harm to biodiversity cannot be avoided, 
adequately mitigated or compensated for, then planning permission should be 
refused. 
 
Environment Agency Standing Advice 
 
Standing flood risk advice for minor development has been produced by the 
Environment Agency and is published on the gov.uk website. This calls for 
information on the floor levels of proposed development and the estimated flood 
levels, and advises that floor levels should be no lower that existing or 300mm 
above the estimated flood level. It also advises that flood resistant materials should 
be used to a height of at least 300mm above the estimated flood level and that (if 
floor levels cannot be raised) then extra flood resistance and resilience measures 
should protect the property to at least 300mm above the estimated flood level. 
Finally, it advises that plans should show how it will be ensured that the 
development is not flooded by surface or ground water. 
 
Leicester Core Strategy (2014) and City of Leicester Local Plan (2006) 
 
Development plan policies relevant to this application are listed at the end of this 
report. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents and Guidance 
 
Residential Amenity Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2008) 

Consultations 
Lead Local Flood Authority: no objection subject to conditions. 

Representations 
Public consultation was undertaken when the application was first received, and 
again following the receipt of amended plans. 
 
First Consultation (29/07/2022) 
 
Representations were received from six addresses as well as a petition with ten 
signatures raising the following issues: 
 

 Scraptoft Mews is private land/application form states site can be seen 
from a public road 

 proposal cannot be constructed without trespass onto private land 

 there should be no encroachment for construction (inc. guttering & 
scaffolding) or maintenance 

9



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 6 

 risk of damage to property maintained by residents 

 precedent for loss of space for wildlife 

 increase risk of flooding 

 maintenance issues 

 conditions must ensure no loss of privacy 

 noise from construction must not take place outside of 10.00am – 
4.00pm/some residents work night shifts 

 inconvenience of construction traffic 

 parking spaces should not be blocked/access should not be impeded 

 construction dangerous to children playing in street 

 loss of sunlight 
 
Second Consultation (03/10/2022) 
 
No representations have been received following the second consultation on the 
amended plans. 

Consideration 
The main issues in this case are: the principle of development; the character and 
appearance of the area; the amenity of neighbouring occupiers; the living 
conditions of future occupiers; parking and access; and flooding. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Core Strategy (2014) Policy CS08 states that it is the Council’s aim to ensure that 
the city’s suburbs continue to thrive and so provide neighbourhoods that people 
aspire to live in and which are a genuine alternative to out-migration form the city. 
 
The proposal is for single storey extensions to a single family dwellinghouse and, 
as amended, is of a scale that is common to this type of house. I am satisfied that 
the proposal would comply with Policy CS03 and that it is acceptable in principle. 
 
Character and Appearance 
 
Core Strategy (2014) Policy CS03 calls for developments to contribute positively to 
the character and appearance of the built environment and requires developments 
to be appropriate to the local setting and context and take into account Leicester’s 
history and heritage. The Policy goes on to refer to, amongst other things, scale, 
height, layout, urban form, architecture, massing and materials. Saved Policy PS10 
of the Local Plan (2006) sets out amenity considerations for new development 
including (b) the visual quality of the area and (f) the ability of the area to assimilate 
development. 
 
Appendix G of the Residential Amenity supplementary planning document (2008) 
(“the SPD”) provides design guidance for house extensions in the city and is 
therefore also relevant to the proposals. 
 
As amended, the side extension would not project further rearward than the existing 
single storey outrigger and its maximum and eaves heights would be consistent 

10



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 7 

with those of the existing outrigger. In these respects the proposal represents a 
material improvement to the proposal submitted in the previous application 
(20212776). To compensate for the reduction in rearward projection adjacent to the 
boundary with Scraptoft Mews, a single storey rear projection adjacent to the 
boundary with 5 Scraptoft Lane is now also proposed. This would be set-back from 
the rear elevation of the existing outrigger and would be of a rearward projection 
appropriate to the scale of the original house and commonly found to the rear of 
semi-detached dwellings. Taken individually and cumulatively, I am satisfied that 
the proposed single storey side and rear extensions would now not be of excessive 
depth and height and that they would appear subservient to the original house.  
 
As a single storey only extension I consider that the siting of the side extension, 
adjacent to the boundary of this corner property, is not unacceptable. Similarly, as 
a single storey only extension, I consider that the siting of the rear extension, 
adjacent to the boundary with 5 Scraptoft Lane, is not unacceptable. I further 
consider that the design of the proposal, incorporating a pitched roof to match the 
pitch of the existing outrigger roof, is appropriate. A recessed ‘on the wall’ eaves 
and gutter detail is proposed along the flank wall adjacent to Scraptoft Mews and I 
consider that this is an appropriate detail, for a less prominent single storey 
extension, to avoid any encroachment onto the neighbouring land. 
 
The application form indicates that matching bricks and tiles would be used. As 
originally submitted, this application also proposed timber cladding along the flank 
wall of the side extension facing Scraptoft Mews. This has now also been amended 
so that the flank wall would also be finished in brick. I consider that this is the 
appropriate material response to the original house, which has brick walls (albeit 
painted brick to the side and rear) and slate roof tiles, and subject to a condition to 
ensure that these match the existing I am satisfied that the proposal is acceptable 
in this respect also. 
 
To conclude, I am satisfied that the amended proposal the subject of this 
application has satisfactorily overcome the reason for refusal of the previous 
application (20212776), and that – having regard to the SPD - the development 
would comply with the relevant provisions of Policies CS03 & PS10 and is 
acceptable in terms of its impact upon the character and appearance of the area. 
 
Amenity of neighbouring occupiers 
 
As noted above, Core Strategy (2014) Policy CS03 requires developments to be 
appropriate to the local setting and context. Saved Policy PS10 of the Local Plan 
(2006) sets out amenity considerations for new development including (b) visual 
quality and (d) privacy and overshadowing.  
 
Appendix G of the SPD provides further guidance on the consideration of amenity 
impacts including outlook, daylight, sunlight and overlooking. 
 
The facing ground floor front elevations of the houses at Scraptoft Mews comprise 
garages and glazed entrance doors, although I note that the garage at 1 Scraptoft 
Mews has been converted to a habitable room with window in place of the former 
garage door at the front. A distance of approx. 11 metres exists between the front 

11



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 8 

of the garages and the side boundary of the application site, this separation 
distance increasing to 13 metres in respect of the main front elevation of the 
Scraptoft Mews houses. I am satisfied, given the relationship between the Scraptoft 
Mews houses (including the converted garage at 1 Scraptoft Mews), that the 
proposal would have no unacceptable impact upon the amenity of those 
neighbouring properties in terms of outlook, daylight and sunlight. As amended, 
and subject to the use of matching materials as described above, I am satisfied 
that the general visual impact when viewed from Scraptoft Mews would be 
acceptable. 
 
The adjoining semi-detached dwelling at 5 Scraptoft Lane has its own single storey 
rear extension adjacent to the common boundary. This neighbouring extension has 
a rearward projection of approx. 3 metres. The proposed single storey rear 
extension would project slightly beyond the existing neighbouring extension but 
would not, in accordance with the SPD, project further than a 45 degree line taken, 
on plan, from the centre of the adjacent ground floor rear principal room window at 
5 Scraptoft Lane. In this circumstance, having regard to the SPD and noting that 
the rear elevations of 3 & 5 Scraptoft Lane face south, I am satisfied that the 
proposal would have no unacceptable impact upon the amenity of 5 Scraptoft Lane 
in terms of outlook, daylight and sunlight. I am satisfied that the general visual 
impact of the amended proposal when viewed from 5 Scraptoft Lane, and subject 
to matching materials as above, would be acceptable. 
 
No windows are proposed in the flank walls of the amended proposal. I note that 
representations received call for control of the future installation of windows in the 
flank wall facing Scraptoft Mews; however the future installation of windows in this 
elevation would not, in my opinion, lead to any unacceptable overlooking 
relationships with the Scraptoft Mews properties and as such a condition would not 
meet the tests set out at paragraph 56 of the NPPF. I am satisfied that the proposal 
would not lead to any overlooking relationships that would unacceptably impact the 
privacy of any neighbouring occupiers. 
 
I further note that representations received have raised issues relating to 
construction impacts, notably noise/disturbance during construction, 
inconvenience from construction vehicle and the potential danger posed to children 
playing in the street. As the proposal is for domestic development of a relatively 
modest scale, I consider it unlikely that the impacts and risks described would be 
likely to be significant and that the imposition of controls (for example, through a 
requirement for a Construction Management Plan) would be disproportionate in this 
case and would not meet the tests for conditions set out at paragraph 56 of the 
NPPF. 
 
To conclude, I am satisfied – having regard to the SPD - that the development 
would comply with the relevant provisions of Policies CS03 & PS10 and is 
acceptable in terms of its impact upon the privacy and amenity of neighbouring 
occupiers. 
 
Living conditions of future occupiers 
 

12



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 9 

Core Strategy (2014) Policy CS03 seeks the creation of buildings and spaces that 
are fit for purpose. Appendix G of the SPD states that extensions should leave 
sufficient space for general use and penetration of light and sun. It goes on to 
recommend a minimum garden areas of 100m2 for a 3+ bedroom house, and that 
in any event no more than 50% of the existing rear yard or garden area should be 
covered by extensions. 
 
The application house occupies a large plot with a particularly extensive rear 
garden. The retained rear garden area would amount to approx. 453m2 and the 
footprint of the proposed extension would occupy substantially less than 50% of 
the existing area. I am satisfied, having regard to the SPD, that the development 
would not unacceptably reduce the available rear garden space at the property. 
 
The proposal would facilitate the provision of a ground floor bedroom and shower 
room needed by the current occupiers. The bedroom would occupy the proposed 
single storey rear extension meaning that the existing living room would be 
deprived of a window on the rear elevation. This room would continue to be served 
by the bay window at the front. I am satisfied that the front bay window would 
continue to provide acceptable daylight to, and outlook from, the retained ground 
floor living room. 
 
In all other respects I consider that the proposal, as amended, would ensure that 
acceptable living conditions would continue to exist at the host dwelling. 
 
To conclude, I am satisfied – having regard to the SPD - that the development 
would comply with the relevant provisions of Policies CS03 & PS10 and is 
acceptable in terms of its impact upon living conditions at the host property. 
 
Parking and Access 
 
Core Strategy (2014) Policy CS15 states that car parking should be appropriate for 
the type of dwelling and its location. Saved Local Plan (2006) Policy AM12 refers 
to the parking standards at Appendix 01 of the Plan, and those standards call for 
two parking spaces for 3+ bedroom dwellings in zones 3&4 of the city (which 
includes the application site). 
 
The proposal would involve the loss of the car port. However, the property benefits 
from an unusually large forecourt and this is already substantially hardsurfaced and 
served by an existing vehicle access from Scraptoft Lane. The proposal would not 
dimmish the available forecourt parking space and would not, in my opinion, 
materially increase parking demand associated with the property, which would 
remain a single family dwellinghouse. I am satisfied that sufficient space would 
remain at the property to park two cars off-street, in accordance with Appendix 01. 
 
I do not consider that the proposal would be likely to give rise to conditions 
prejudicial to the free flow of traffic or safety of users of the public highway.  
 
To conclude, I am satisfied – having regard to Appendix 01 - that the development 
would comply with the relevant provisions of Policies CS15 & AM12 and is 
acceptable in terms of parking and access. 

13



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 10 

 
Flooding 
 
Policy CS02 of the Core Strategy (2014) states that development should be 
directed to locations with least impact on flooding and that, where development is 
proposed in flood risk areas, mitigation measures must be put in place to reduce 
the effects of flood water. Saved Policy BE20 of the Local Plan (2006) also calls for 
adequate mitigation of flood risk from development. 
 
In accordance with paragraph 168 of the NPPF the proposal need not be subject 
to sequential or exception testing but should still meet the requirement for flood risk 
assessment. 
 
A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (dated December 2022) has been received. This 
assesses the risk of flooding from all sources and includes an assessment of 
modelled fluvial flood levels, with the data provided by the Environment Agency. 
The modelled 1 in 100 year level (+30% climate change allowance) for the site is 
stated as 67.5mAOD and the Finished Floor Levels (FFL) as existing are 
67.75mAOD. It is stated that, as the FFLs are not at least 300mm above the 
modelled fluvial flood level, then recommendation is given for the inclusion of flood 
resilience and resistance measures 
 
It is stated within the FRA that a pro-forma Flood Plan should be completed, which 
will give guidance on emergency flood response procedures in the event of flooding 
to the site. Also, a number of flood resilience and resistance measures have been 
recommended to be included, which are as follows: 
 

 flood resilient doors; 

 door defence (barriers); 

 anti-flood air bricks and flue covers; and 

 no service penetrations or other opening below 1m above FFL. 
 
It has been outlined within the FRA that consideration should be given to either 
sedum green roof for the areas of flat roof and/or raised rain-garden planters 
together with a water butt. The sustainable drainage systems to be included in the 
proposed development will need to be confirmed. 
 
The Lead Local Flood Authority has advised that is has no objection to the proposal 
subject to conditions to: secure the details, implementation and maintenance of the 
sustainable drainage systems; ensure that the development is carried out in 
accordance with the flood resilience and resistance measures detailed in the FRA; 
secure acceptable emergency flood planning arrangements. 
 
I conclude that the development would comply with the relevant provisions of Policy 
CS02  and is acceptable in terms of flood risk. 
 
Other Matters 
 
I do not consider that the proposal raises any material ecological considerations in 
relation to the Biodiversity Enhancement Site associated with the Bushby Brook. 

14



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 11 

Nor do I consider that the proposal raises any material air quality considerations 
noting that the site is within a 250 metres Local Authority Air Pollution Control buffer 
of the Shell Trocadero petrol station. 
 
Turning to matters raised in representations and not otherwise addressed in the 
main report above: 
 

 Scraptoft Mews is private land/application form states site can be seen 
from a public road: noted re: Scraptoft Mews; the site can be seen from a 
public road (Scraptoft Lane) 

 proposal cannot be constructed without trespass onto private land: this is a 
private matter between the applicant and the owner(s) of the adjoining land 
concerned 

 there should be no encroachment for construction (inc. guttering & 
scaffolding) or maintenance: as above, this is a private matter 

 risk of damage to property maintained by residents: as above, this is a 
private matter 

 precedent for loss of space for wildlife: I do not consider that the proposal 
would lead to an unacceptable loss of space for wildlife (or precedent for 
same) 

 maintenance issues: as above, this is a private matter 

 noise from construction must not take place outside of 10.00am – 
4.00pm/some residents work night shifts: I do not consider that the 
proposed development is of a nature/scale that would justify control over 
hours of construction 

 inconvenience of construction traffic: I do not consider that the proposed 
development is of a nature/scale that would justify control over 
construction traffic 

 parking spaces should not be blocked/access should not be impeded: I do 
not consider that the proposed development is of a nature/scale that would 
justify control over construction parking 

 construction dangerous to children playing in street: I do not consider that 
the construction of the proposal is likely to present an unacceptable danger 
to children 

Conclusions 
The extension of houses is acceptable in principle and the proposal has been the 
subject of ongoing dialogue with officers following the previously refused 
application and during the course of the subject application. I am satisfied that the 
proposal would have an acceptable impact upon the character and appearance of 
the area and would not give rise to unacceptable impacts upon the amenity enjoyed 
by the occupiers of neighbouring properties. The proposal would maintain 
acceptable living conditions, parking provision and access at the application 
property. The flood risk issues raised by the proposal have been properly assessed 
and the impacts can be adequately mitigated by planning conditions. In reaching 
my conclusion I have considered the third party representations received. I find that 
the proposed development would comply with the relevant provisions of Policies 
CS02, CS03, CS08 and CS15 of the Leicester Core Strategy (2014) and saved 

15



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 12 

Policies AM11 and PS10 of the City of Leicester Local Plan (2006) and that it is 
acceptable. 
 
I recommend that this application for planning permission be APPROVED subject 
to the following conditions: 

 CONDITIONS 
 
1. The development shall be begun within three years from the date of this 
permission. (To comply with Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.) 
 
2. The new walls and roof shall be constructed in materials to match those of 
the existing house. (In the interests of the visual quality and character of the area, 
in accordance with Policy CS03 of the Leicester Core Strategy and saved Policy 
PS10 of the City of Leicester Local Plan (2006)). 
 
3. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the Sustainable 
Drainage System (SuDS), including details of the implementation, long term 
maintenance and management of the system, shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall not be occupied 
until the system has been implemented in accordance with the approved details. It 
shall thereafter be managed and maintained in accordance with the approved 
details. (To reduce surface water run-off and to secure other related benefits in 
accordance with Policy CS02 of the Leicester Core Strategy (2014)). 
 
4. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
measures detailed in the Flood Risk Assessment dated December 2022 (rec'd 
16/12/2022): 5.2 floor levels; 6.2 flood mitigation; and 7.1 safe access and egress; 
and shall thereafter be retained and continued. (To ensure that the flood risk 
implications of the development are adequately mitigated, in the interests of the 
safety of future occupiers and in accordance with Policy CS02 of the Leicester Core 
Strategy (2014.) 
 
5. The development shall not be occupied until an Emergency Flood Plan has 
been implemented in accordance with details that shall first have been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The Emergency Flood 
Plan so approved shall thereafter be retained and its implementation continued. (In 
the interests of the safety of future occupiers and in accordance with Policy CS02 
of the Leicester Core Strategy (2014.) and saved Policy BE20 of the City of 
Leicester Local Plan (2006). 
 
6. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans: Site Location Plan and Block Plan/Site Plan - both rec'd 06/05/2022; and 
Sheet number 1 (Existing and Proposed Floor Plans V2) and Sheet number 3 
(Proposed Elevations V2) - both rec'd 28/09/2022.(For the avoidance of doubt). 
  
 
 NOTES FOR APPLICANT 
 

16



\\mastergov\docs\live\wp\masters\miscwp.doc 13 

1. The applicant is advised that the following details should be included in the 
emergency flood plan for the purposes of discharging the requirements of Condition 
5: 

a) Define the areas of safe refuge for residents and/or users of the 
development to use if safe access and egress is not possible. 

b) Define how Flood Resilience Measures incorporated into the development 
are to be managed and maintained throughout their lifespan, as well as how 
they are to be operated in the event of a flood and the person/organisation 
responsible for their operation. 

c) Provide recommendation that all residents and/or users of the development 
to sign up for the Environment Agency’s free Flood Warning service and the 
Met Office severe weather warnings email alert service where available for 
the site 

 
2. The City Council, as local planning authority has acted positively and 
proactively in determining this application by assessing the proposal against all 
material considerations, including planning policies and any representations that 
may have been received. This planning application has been the subject of positive 
and proactive discussions with the applicant during the process (and/or pre-
application).  
The decision to grant planning permission with appropriate conditions taking 
account of those material considerations in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF 2021 is considered to be 
a positive outcome of these discussions.  
  
 
Policies relating to this recommendation 

2006_AM11 Proposals for parking provision for non-residential development should not exceed 
the maximum standards specified in Appendix 01.  

2006_PS10 Criteria will be used to assess planning applications which concern the amenity of 
existing or proposed residents.  

2014_CS02 Development must mitigate and adapt to climate change and reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions. The policy sets out principles which provide the climate change 
policy context for the City.  

2014_CS03 The Council will require high quality, well designed developments that contribute 
positively to the character and appearance of the local natural and built 
environment. The policy sets out design objectives for urban form, connections and 
access, public spaces, the historic environment, and 'Building for Life'.  

2014_CS08 Neighbourhoods should be sustainable places that people choose to live and work 
in and where everyday facilities are available to local people. The policy sets out 
requirements for various neighbourhood areas in the City.  

2014_CS15 To meet the key aim of reducing Leicester's contribution to climate change, the 
policy sets out measures to help manage congestion on the City roads. 

 

17





COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 

 

20220977 8 Thoresby Street 

Proposal: 

Retrospective application for construction of single storey 
extension at front, side and rear of house; alterations (Class C3) 
(Amended plans received 5/8/2022) 

Applicant: Mrs R Mann 

App type: Operational development - full application 

Status: Householder development 

Expiry Date: 12 August 2022 

ACB TEAM:  PE WARD:  North Evington 

 

2

52
54

2
6

1
1

1
0

7

3
6

24b

257

2
6

11

253

9

1
9

2
5

7a

3
1

7b
7c

15

1

1
4

6
a

1

1
1

8

2

6
4

247
b

247
a

247

245

3
0
0
b

3
0
0
a

3
0
2
b

3
0
2
a

2
9
8
b

2
9
6
a

2
9
6
b

2
9
8
a

235

1

22
9
4
c

1

2

 

©Crown Copyright Reserved. Leicester City Council Licence 100019264(2022). Ordnance 

Survey mapping does not imply any ownership boundaries and does not always denote the 

exact ground features 

Summary  
 Application is reported to the committee at the request of Councillor Joshi. 

 No objections have been received 

 Issues are the impact of the extension on the residential amenity of 
neighbouring properties 

 Application is recommended for refusal 

19

Appendix A2



The Site 
The application site is a semi-detached house located within a residential part of the 
City. Part of the rear garden is within an area at risk of flooding from a 1 in 1000 year 
event. 

Background  
In January 2021 planning permission 20202359 was granted for the construction of 
a single storey canopy at the front, a single storey extension at the side and rear and 
the construction of a decking area at the rear. 
 
Also in January 2021 under notification 20202466 it was determined that prior 
approval was not required for the construction of a single storey extension to the 
rear of the house. Notes to applicants were included on both applications to advise 
that they could not be constructed in one building operation. 
 
In April 2022 a report was received by the Enforcement Team that a large extension 
was being constructed to the side and rear of the house. 

The Proposal  
The application has been submitted as a result of the investigation and is for 
retrospective permission for the construction of a single storey extension to the front, 
side and rear of the house. 
 
The front extension is in the form of a canopy and is 3.5m high and spans the width 
of the original front of the house. 
 
The side extension is 1.9m wide, 14 metres deep and 3.2 metres high with a dual 
pitched roof.  
 
The rear extension projects 6 metres from the rear of the house. It is 5.4 metres 
wide and 3.5 metres high with a dual pitched roof. 
 
The extensions would be finished in render and the existing house would also be 
rendered. The extensions have been constructed in one building operation. 
 
Amended plans were submitted showing a corner of the extension closest to 10 
Thoresby Street being removed, however the applicants have requested that the 
application be determined based on the originally submitted plans. 
 
The application was previously reported to your meeting of 23 November 2022 and 
was deferred to allow the applicants an opportunity to submit amended plans. No 
amended plans have been received and the applicants wish the proposal to be 
considered on the original plans. 

Policy Considerations 
National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF) 

20



Paragraph 2: applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with development plans unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

Paragraph 11: A presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

Paragraph 126:  the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable buildings and 
places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should 
achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better 
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to 
communities. 
 
Paragraph 130 sets out criteria for assessing planning applications and requires 
decision makers to ensure that development proposals function well and add to the 
overall quality of the area, are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, are 
sympathetic to local character and history, establish or maintain a strong sense of 
place, optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development and create places that are safe, inclusive and 
accessible and which promote health and well-being. 
 
This paragraph, specifically 130(f), also requires development to afford a high 
standard of amenity for existing and future occupiers and is consistent with policy 
PS10 of the City of Leicester Local Plan 

Paragraph 159 states that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding 
should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk 
(whether existing or future). Where development is necessary in such areas, the 
development should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk 
elsewhere. 

 
Development plan policies relevant to this application are listed at the end of this 
report. 
 
Residential Amenity SPD 

Representations 
The application was advertised by letters to neighbours. No comments have been 
received from members of the public. 
 
Councillor Joshi has requested that the application be determined by your 
committee to allow wider discussion on the issues related to the case. 

Consideration 
 
Principle of development  
 
The application is for extensions to a house in a residential area. Therefore it is 
acceptable in principle subject to considerations regarding design, residential 
amenity and in this case the impact on flooding. 
 

21



Design  
 
Policy CS03 of the Leicester Core Strategy states that the Council will require high 
quality, well designed developments that contribute positively to the character and 
appearance of the local natural and built environment. 
 
The proposed canopy to the front of the property would be a small scale addition to 
the front of the property and would not be supported by brackets rather than 
columns. The neighbouring property at 10 Thoresby Street also has a canopy and 
there are other examples of canopies on Thoresby Street. 
 
The proposed side extension is set back from the front of the property and replaces 
a poorly designed covered area. 
 
The proposed rear extension has a different roof arrangement from the original 
house, however it is located to the rear of the property and cannot be seen from the 
public view. Given the depth of the extension it would be difficult to provide a single 
pitched roof and I therefore consider that a refusal on design grounds could not be 
justified. 
 
Residential amenity (neighbouring properties) 
 
The neighbouring property at 6a Thoresby Street remains as constructed. The side 
extension would be located on the boundary with this property. Whilst the proposed 
extension would intersect a 45° line taken from the centre point of the nearest 
window to a habitable room in this property the extension replaces a garage that 
also intersected the 45° line. I therefore consider that the impact on the residential 
amenity of the occupiers of this property would not be significantly harmful to justify 
refusal. 
 
The neighbouring property at 10 Thoresby Street has been extended to the rear with 
a two and single storey extension. The single storey extension projects 3 metres 
from the rear of the house at the point closest to the proposed rear extension and 
there is a set of double doors to the rear of this extension- these are the only 
windows available to this room. The proposed extension would intersect a 45° line 
taken from the centre point of these doors and the proposed rear extension would 
result in a loss of light and outlook from the neighbouring property at 10 Thoresby 
Street to the detriment of the residential amenity of the occupiers of this property. I 
therefore consider that the proposal would be contrary to paragraph 130(f) of the 
NPPF and saved policy PS10 of the City of Leicester Local Plan in this regard. 
 
The neighbouring property to the rear at 17 The Littleway is approximately 27 metres 
from the rear of the proposed rear extension and this would be greater than the 
separation distance required by the guidance in the Residential Amenity SPD. I 
therefore consider that the impact on the residential amenity of the occupiers of this 
property would not be significant enough to justify refusal. 
 
Highways and Parking 
 

22



The proposal results in the loss of one off street parking space in the form of the 
covered area to the side. However, this space would not have been considered to be 
wide enough to accommodate a vehicle of modern standards. There remains 
sufficient space for off street parking on the front of the property and I therefore 
consider that a refusal on the impact on the highway could not be justified. 
 
Drainage 
 
Part of the rear garden of the property where the rear extension is proposed is within 
an area at risk of flooding from a 1 in 1000 year event. If the proposal were 
recommended for approval I would propose a condition requiring floor levels to be 
no lower than the existing and for flood proofing and resilience measures to be 
included.  
 
Other matters 
 
Whilst planning permission has been granted for the front and side extension and a 
determination that prior approval was not required for the rear extension has also 
been made, these are separate decisions operating under separate areas of 
planning and the two developments cannot be constructed at the same time. The 
reason behind this is that the prior approval extension would not comply with the 
submitted details and the side extension would breach the condition relating to the 
approved plans under the previously approved. The resulting development may be 
similar had it been built in separate stages however planning permission and prior  
approval are given for the construction of the buildings and not the resulting building. 
 
The Prior Approval Notification procedures did not allow the impact on the 45 degree 
line affecting the adjacent property to be considered- however this is now a material 
consideration with regard to the retrospective application to retain the structure as 
built subject of this report.  

Conclusion 
 
In conclusion I consider that the application would have a significant detrimental 
impact on the residential amenity of the occupiers of 10 Thoresby Street due to loss 
of light and outlook. 
 
I recommend REFUSAL for the following reasons: 
 
 

 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
1. The proposal by virtue of its depth and siting would result in an adverse 
impact on the amenity of occupants of 10 Thoresby Street in terms of loss of outlook 
and light to their rear ground floor principal window and would be contrary to the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2021) paragraph 130 (f) which requires 
development to afford a high standard of amenity for existing and future occupiers. 
The proposal would also be contrary to saved policy PS10 of the City of Leicester 
Local Plan and guidance in Residential Amenity SPD (2008). 

23



 
 NOTES FOR APPLICANT 
 
1. REFUSAL - NEGOTIATION 
 

Policies relating to this recommendation 

2006_PS10 Criteria will be used to assess planning applications which concern the amenity of 
existing or proposed residents.  

2014_CS02 Development must mitigate and adapt to climate change and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. The policy sets out principles which provide the climate change policy 
context for the City.  

2014_CS03 The Council will require high quality, well designed developments that contribute 
positively to the character and appearance of the local natural and built environment. 
The policy sets out design objectives for urban form, connections and access, public 
spaces, the historic environment, and 'Building for Life'.  

 

24


	Agenda
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND CONTRAVENTIONS
	4a 20220966 3 SCRAPTOFT LANE
	4b 20220977 8 THORESPBY STREET

